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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Good morning, and

          3  I thank you very much for being patient with the

          4  delay.  We have got a lot going on, as everybody

          5  knows, at City Hall in these frantic weeks, and I

          6  appreciate your patience.

          7                 This hearing is a hearing of the City

          8  Council's Select Committee on Waterfronts, and the

          9  topic for today is the safety, or really the danger

         10  of eating fish caught in New York Harbor.  Thousands

         11  of New Yorkers do eat fish caught in New York Harbor

         12  every week, and many of them may be poisoning

         13  themselves and their families unwittingly.

         14                 I first got the idea to look into

         15  this in walking around my district and seeing people

         16  fishing routinely on the weekends, and it must take

         17  place during the week as well, fishing off piers and

         18  bulkheads.  And when I ask people, are you going to

         19  eat that fish?  They said, absolutely.  And one day

         20  when I saw a man with young son fishing and they

         21  were planning to go home and eat the fish, I wanted

         22  to figure out is there a problem here, and it turns

         23  out there is a problem.  There is abundant evidence

         24  that fish caught in New York Harbor are not healthy

         25  to eat in any, in large quantities or in significant
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          2  quantities.  There are several toxins that studies

          3  have found to be present in New York Harbor and in

          4  fish swimming there.

          5                 These include: PCBs, polychlorinated

          6  biphenyl, which can cause cancer and damage to the

          7  immune, reproductive and nervous systems; Cadmium,

          8  which is associated with kidney, blood and bone

          9  disease; Dioxins, which cause cancer and also liver

         10  disorders; and also mercury and DDT.  All of these

         11  toxins are present in high levels in New York Harbor

         12  and in the fish that swim there.  And people who eat

         13  those fish are putting themselves at risk.

         14                 A study by the Mount Sinai School of

         15  Medicine, in fact, found that people from New York,

         16  from fishing clubs that fish in the Harbor and eat

         17  the fish there had elevated levels of PCBs, dioxins,

         18  chlordane, DDT and mercury in their blood and hair.

         19  So the risks are very real.  And we, in the City,

         20  are not doing nearly enough to prevent the risk or

         21  to mitigate that risk.

         22                 I am calling for a three- part

         23  program:

         24                 First, the City should put signs at

         25  all public places where people fish, should put
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          2  signs in the appropriate languages, for many of the

          3  folks who are fishing and eating fish their native

          4  language is not English, but it is Spanish, Chinese,

          5  or another language.  At any public place, any

          6  government- owned property where people are known to

          7  fish and eat the fish, the government should put up

          8  signs.

          9                 Second, I believe that we need to

         10  require private property owners to post signs, if

         11  the Department of Health finds that people routinely

         12  fish and eat the fish from their property.

         13                 And third, the Department of Health

         14  needs to develop a comprehensive, outreach plan, an

         15  outreach program for the affected populations.

         16                 And I would note, speaking of the

         17  Department of Health, that Council Member Christine

         18  Quinn, who is the Chair of the Health Committee in

         19  the City Council, had wanted to be here today and

         20  planned to be here today, but because of a

         21  scheduling conflict that arose at the last minute,

         22  could not be.  But she asked me to make sure that

         23  her presence was, in spirit, was noted.

         24                 So that is the program, and today, we

         25  will be hearing from witnesses who will elucidate
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          2  the dangers, and speak to the possibility of some

          3  government program to offset them.

          4                 I see we are joined, also today, by

          5  Council Member Addabbo from Queens.  Council member

          6  would you like to make an opening statement or not

          7  at this time?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Not at this

          9  time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well thank you

         11  very much. Without further ado, then, and I will be,

         12  due to the time pressure, I am going to ask

         13  witnesses to stick to the three- minute rule. Your

         14  written statements will be made part of the record,

         15  please, feel free to summarize them, that way we

         16  will time for questions and also to get us out of

         17  the room by the time we need to be.

         18                 The first panel of witnesses is

         19  Robert Nyman from the United States Environmental

         20  Protection Agency, Harbor Estuary Program; Eugenia

         21  Flatow, I hope I am pronouncing that correctly, from

         22  the New York City Soil and Water Conservation

         23  District; and Kerry Kirk from the New Jersey

         24  Department of Environmental Protection.  Would those

         25  witnesses please come to the table?  I'm sorry, it's
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          2  Kerry Kirk Pflugh, I apologize.

          3                 Mr. Nyman, why don't you start, since

          4  that is the order my cards are in, in which my cards

          5  appear.

          6                 MR. NYMAN:  My name is Bob Nyman.

          7  I'm the Director of New York/New Jersey Harbor

          8  Estuary Program, one of the 28 national estuary

          9  programs throughout the country.  And the main

         10  purpose of these programs is to establish

         11  comprehensive conservation and management plans for

         12  the estuaries around the country.

         13                 My job as Director is to, basically,

         14  to work with state, federal and local agencies, non-

         15  profits, economic folks, and actually a lot of the

         16  folks you are going to be hearing from today, are

         17  people that I work with on a day- to- day basis.

         18  And toxic contamination is one of the areas that we

         19  are particularly interested in.

         20                 I guess I should just note that EPA

         21  does, or the Harbor Estuary Program do not issue

         22  fish advisories, but we rely on the appropriate

         23  agencies to do that.

         24                 You will probably be hearing later on

         25  that back in the early nineties, and as you referred
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          2  to, EPA funded New York State DEC to collect a lot

          3  of fish, shell fish and crustaceans throughout the

          4  harbor, and did, indeed, find that there problems

          5  with a number of contaminants.  In particular, PCBs,

          6  chlordane, DDT, and dioxins.  The Harbor Estuary

          7  Program has a work group called the Toxic Work Group

          8  and we, periodically, evaluate information that is

          9  known about contamination in fish and shell fish in

         10  the water.  And, you know, we confirmed that these

         11  are, in fact, problems in the Harbor.

         12                 I believe you are going to be hearing

         13  from Dennis Suszkowski from the Hudson River

         14  Foundation, on the next panel. The Hudson River

         15  Foundation put together a report for the Harbor

         16  Estuary Program on environmental indicators in the

         17  Harbor, and that again, indicated that there were

         18  problems, exceedingness for a number of contaminants

         19  in fish and shell fish throughout the Harbor, and

         20  that it is, indeed, a problem.

         21                 So what is the Harbor Estuary Program

         22  doing about this?  Because this is a bi- state area,

         23  it's New York and New Jersey and the waters are

         24  shared, we are working with both New York and New

         25  Jersey and encouraging consistent fish advisories
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          2  between the two states so that on one side of the

          3  river you do not have one advisory and on the other

          4  side a different one, that kind of confuses the

          5  issue.

          6                 You will also hear about the

          7  Contaminate Assessment Reduction Project from Dennis

          8  Suszkowski, which will establish where some of these

          9  contaminants are coming from.  And then EPA will use

         10  that in development of total maximum daily loads to

         11  reduce, for reduction of these contaminants.

         12                 So in summary, Harbor Estuary Program

         13  recognizes that the people want to use the

         14  waterfront.  They should be able to fish, but that

         15  is a problem with some of these contaminants.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         17  much.  Well I have a number of follow- up questions,

         18  but why don't we hear from everybody on the panel,

         19  and then we will get to the questions.

         20                 Ms. Flatow, well, I'm sorry, I guess

         21  protocol would require, we have Ms. Pflugh from the

         22  New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection.

         23  And thank you very much, it's so many of the

         24  waterfront issues we work on, really are, you know,

         25  cross jurisdictional, involve New Jersey as well as
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          2  New York.  And I know that, you know, you have no

          3  kind of obligation to the New York City Council, but

          4  I really appreciate your coming to be with us today.

          5  Thank you very much.

          6                 MS. PFLUGH:  Thank you very much for

          7  inviting me, and actually, we have a message that I

          8  would like to share from our Commissioner, who

          9  actually is quite anxious to form a partnership with

         10  New York to try to resolve this problem, which is

         11  really a problem between our two states and the

         12  City, as well.

         13                 I'm here to talk about an outreach

         14  program, and you mentioned the fact that your

         15  Department of Health will be trying to develop one,

         16  and I think I am going to skip right down to that,

         17  and just tell you a little bit about what we are

         18  doing.

         19                 Although the state has authority to

         20  impose a ban, and we do have a ban on our crabs that

         21  are contaminated with dioxin, the Department felt

         22  that, we did not want to use the heavy handed

         23  approach, because we feel it is not effective in

         24  changing behavior and educating people about health

         25  risks.  So our approach is a two- tier one.  We are
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          2  taking a traditional outreach approach, which is the

          3  use of media and other outreach tools, such as signs

          4  and brochures, as well as a community- based

          5  approach to employ the use of local partners.  And

          6  we are going to do this in several ways.

          7                 First on the State level, the

          8  Department has been in the process of conducting an

          9  extensive phone campaign to 32 municipalities in the

         10  Health Department, alerting them to the problem of

         11  consumption of contaminated crabs in the North Bay

         12  Complex, and enlisting their support for our

         13  outreach effort.  We have also distributed signs

         14  that say, Danger, do not eat in English, Spanish and

         15  Portuguese, to the municipalities for them to post

         16  along the waterfront at fishing and crabbing

         17  locations.  We also, will be working with each of

         18  the Health Departments in the region to develop

         19  programs specific to their needs.

         20                 Additionally, articles have appeared

         21  in local newspapers.  We are going to be conducting

         22  a survey of crabbers to learn consumption patterns

         23  and information seeking behavior.

         24                 PSAs will be created and distributed

         25  on local TV and Cable stations, and bus placards
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          2  will be produced to circulate on buses in the Newark

          3  Bay Region.

          4                 The effort includes a special

          5  outreach to minority markets, such as the Spanish

          6  Portuguese Media, because results from previous

          7  research by our Department identified these

          8  communities as being least likely to be aware of the

          9  crab ban.  We believe this is in part due to the use

         10  of different outlets for information seeking by

         11  these communities, cultural traditions that include

         12  consumption of recreationally caught fish and crabs,

         13  and just a general disbelief of the health

         14  consequences from eating contaminated crabs.

         15                 In addition, as a result of research

         16  conducted with the Center for Environmental

         17  Communication, brochures have been produced in

         18  English and Spanish with a lesson plan that is

         19  targeted specifically to women of child- bearing age

         20  who use the WIC programs, the Women, Infant and

         21  Children programs.  What is unique about these tools

         22  is that they were developed using focus groups of

         23  the target group and by field testing materials that

         24  were developed with instructors who conduct the

         25  program and the program participants.

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON WATERFRONTS

          2                 The second phase of our effort will

          3  be entering into partnerships with community

          4  organizations.  We will be providing local liaison

          5  grants, and these grants will be used to develop

          6  local efforts that are specific to the needs of that

          7  particular neighborhood.

          8                 We will also be developing and

          9  providing brochures and any other tools for these

         10  efforts.  And finally, we will be evaluating the

         11  campaign.

         12                 I think the thing that has been most

         13  effective in making this happen is the support of

         14  our Commissioner, and the first lady who

         15  participated in an enormous announcement back on May

         16  the 24th, about the dangers of eating crabs, and

         17  have made a major commitment to provide support and

         18  information to the communities on how to resolve the

         19  problem of consumption.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         21  much.  That sounds like a terrific program, I would

         22  like to hear a bit more about that in just a second.

         23    But why don't we finish, Ms. Flatow, please, let's

         24  hear your testimony, as well, thank you.

         25                 MS. FLATOW:  My name is Virginia
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          2  Flatow and I Co Chair the Citizens Advisory

          3  Committee of HEP.  And my opinion on this is that

          4  the Jersey program is marvelous and we are trying

          5  very hard to persuade our agencies to get into the

          6  act.

          7                 Our environmental agencies feel that

          8  if they produce the evidence of what is there, that

          9  it is not their role to reach out.  But I think if

         10  we do not reach out in every way possible to reach

         11  the subsistence fisherman and their families and

         12  others who are at risk, we are in serious danger.  I

         13  have heard that you might have to do 19 languages in

         14  the City of New York, so I feel that we should be

         15  reaching out to the caregivers, whether they are the

         16  hospitals, the clinics, the nurses, or whatever it

         17  is that they are not doing, churches, local

         18  institutions, so that we can reach the people who

         19  are most at risk.  We have learned over many years

         20  that fishing is a very strong urge, it's part of the

         21  access to the waterfront people who want to get

         22  there in order to fish, and they fish wherever they

         23  can get to the water.

         24                 Too often the signs that are put up

         25  are torn down, and I think that it is important that
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          2  we reach people in the schools and in the families

          3  where the risk can take place.  And I think that

          4  every effort should be made that all of the agencies

          5  who are interested in clean water, should be working

          6  with a research agenda and an outreach policy of

          7  every effort to reach the subsistence fisherman

          8  where the families are at serious risk.  And I

          9  applaud the Jersey program.  I had note in some

         10  detail, and have tried very hard to get it launched

         11  here in the City.

         12                 And I think the Estuary program has

         13  almost made a commitment that they will work with

         14  the Academy of Science that has done some research

         15  in this to tell us exactly what we could be working

         16  with.  To use them to reach out to the caregivers,

         17  and I believe you have a lady from Mount Sinai on

         18  that is doing and enormous amount of work in this

         19  area.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well thank you,

         21  thank you very much for that testimony.

         22                 Mr. Nyman, I just have a couple of

         23  questions.  Is it, I mean it's the layperson's, I

         24  guess, impression, just for anybody who goes down to

         25  the water, notes that the water looks much cleaner
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          2  now than 10 years ago, say, the Hudson River, the

          3  East River, they look much better.

          4                 Are the fish healthier than they were

          5  10 years ago, are we getting to the point that 10

          6  years from now you could, you know, fish and eat, no

          7  problem, or is it going to take longer than that,

          8  what is the trajectory here?

          9                 MR. NYMAN:  There actually has been

         10  some work done, I am not sure that I have the

         11  answer, but I can relate some of the information,

         12  particularly related to PCBs.   The trend over the

         13  last probably 15 years or so, it has been a decrease

         14  in level of PCBs, you know, it is particularly in

         15  striped bass, and it is encouraging, but, you know,

         16  there certainly  it has a ways to go. I am not sure

         17  that I can comment on the other contaminants.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do you have any

         19  estimate for how many people are eating fish in New

         20  York Harbor on a regular basis?  Anecdotally, it's

         21  clear that there are lots, thousands of New Yorkers,

         22  just from walking around on the waterfront and the

         23  piers and the bulkheads, see people who fish, and if

         24  you ask them, they say, sure, of course, we eat it.

         25  And as we have begun looking into this and talk to
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          2  folks, some of the researchers, it is clear to them,

          3  you know, from their impressions that people are,

          4  lots of people are eating fish they catch on a

          5  regular basis.

          6                 Is there, what is the best guest from

          7  the government as to how many people we are talking

          8  about?

          9                 MR. NYMAN:  I could not venture a

         10  guess.  I'm sure it is a very large number.  I mean

         11  you see people fishing and crabbing in all the

         12  little canals and creeks, and right along the Hudson

         13  River.  We would be very interested in finding out,

         14  and maybe, you know helping with a study on that to

         15  figure out, just figure out exactly many people are

         16  out there fishing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  My last

         18  question for you is, it is my sense, based on the

         19  work that we have done here, that, I guess what you

         20  said, a heavy handed approach, we are not talking

         21  about saying, you know, prohibiting people from

         22  eating fish, we are not talking about trying to

         23  frighten people to death, there are serious risks

         24  for people who eat a lot of fish or who eat fish

         25  regularly once a week, and particularly for
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          2  children.

          3                 And, I mean, my take on this is what

          4  we need to do, is not trying, you know, stop people

          5  from fishing and eating all together, but educate

          6  them about the risks their facing so that they can,

          7  at least, make an informed decision.  Is that the

          8  approach, is that not an approach that you think

          9  makes sense?

         10                 MR. NYMAN:  I think it is.  You know

         11  we have been talking about this a lot in the Estuary

         12  Program and we have been really looking very

         13  strongly at what New Jersey is doing, we think that

         14  is the right approach.  You know, we are very

         15  interested in seeing this continued on the New York

         16  side as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Ms. Pflugh, my

         18  question, -  Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Flatow.

         19                 MS. FLATOW:  I just wanted to say

         20  that I wish there were more Mount Sinai's in the

         21  City, because we really need to reach the caregivers

         22  who are treating the people who may be at risk, and

         23  that is an important part of what I think should be

         24  our activity.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, that struck
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          2  me, what wrenched that right away is that is a very

          3  sensible approach for what kind of outreach that we

          4  have to undertake.

          5                 Ms. Pflugh, how much is that program

          6  that you described, the outreach program going to

          7  cost New Jersey?

          8                 MS. PFLUGH:  Right now the

          9  Commissioner has committed the program $100,000, and

         10  you know, this is just for the outreach.  This does

         11  not include any research that would be needed to do,

         12  to gather additional information on the

         13  epidemiological kind of information that you might

         14  be looking for.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  How large would

         16  you say is the target population for that outreach?

         17                 MS. PFLUGH:  Well, - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You know, what I

         19  am trying to get a sense of, I mean $100,000 seems

         20  like, well, it's a lot of money for an individual.

         21                 MS. PFLUGH:  Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You know, in the

         23  budget of the City of New York that seems like

         24  something that would be absolutely an investment

         25  worth making, - -
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          2                 MS. PFLUGH:  Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: - -  when you are

          4  talking about the health risks.

          5                 MS. PFLUGH:  We are talking - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Is that, can we

          7  do that?

          8                 MS. PFLUGH:  We are talking about an

          9  area in New Jersey where I'm working with 32

         10  Municipalities, and a 180 miles of shoreline, I

         11  believe, is the estimate that we have, with a

         12  possible, on any given day, hundreds of people doing

         13  crabbing and fishing.  Is it enough?  I think I will

         14  have a better answer for you in October when we have

         15  completed our outreach effort.  But it is a huge

         16  step in the right direction, because the

         17  effectiveness of this particular campaign will come

         18  with the local liaison grants that we are going to

         19  be providing and working with citizens through their

         20  existing networks, which is really we find to be

         21  most effective.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         23  much.  Council Member Addabbo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.  I would like to thank the panel for
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          2  their time and testimony today.              You

          3  know there are a few issues that we deal with in the

          4  City that will go across the board, and this may be

          5  one of them, in my opinion.  It effects people of

          6  all ages to a certain extent, it's a health- related

          7  issue, it's and environmental issue, and it's an

          8  economic issue.  So we are dealing with many issues

          9  here.

         10                 I'm also fashioning the question,

         11  which steps are being taking, or procedural steps

         12  are being taken to eliminate the contaminates, test

         13  or eliminate the contaminates, by whom, what entity

         14  is doing the work, and at what cost, financially?

         15                 MR. NYMAN:  I will start off, I

         16  believe you will be hearing some more about this

         17  from some of the other speakers.  One of the largest

         18  efforts that is underway right now is to identify

         19  the sources of contaminants in the Harbor.  You

         20  know, what currently exists there in the sediment,

         21  in the water, what are the levels in the biota

         22  (phonetic).  It's a very large study, funded

         23  primarily by the Port of Authority of New York/New

         24  Jersey through the two states.  Dr. Suszkowski is

         25  going to be speaking a little bit about that.
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          2                 But we anticipate there is going to

          3  be a lot of information gathered from that study

          4  that will help steer us, steer the clean up efforts

          5  in the right direction.  There are some additional

          6  efforts that are underway, what we call, we call

          7  them track down studies, both in New York and in New

          8  Jersey using various devices to try to locate

          9  discharges or sources of contaminates so that we can

         10  focus clean up efforts in those areas.

         11                 I know in the City of New York we are

         12  expecting results back from a study within a month

         13  or two, and we would be happy to forward those to

         14  the Council, if that is desired.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  The question

         16  of cost may be answered by a subsequent panel?

         17                 MS. FLATOW:  I would like to point

         18  out that New York is one of the largest fish eating

         19  populations in the country.  And so it is hard to

         20  predict exactly how many of them are doing it by

         21  going down and fishing and eating what comes out of

         22  our waters.

         23                 But if you consider the fact that we

         24  have three times as much waterfront, as Kerry says

         25  she has in New Jersey, and the extent of our
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          2  population, I think you will find that this is a

          3  problem that has not received the attention it

          4  should receive from all of the agencies involved.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  If I can, I

          6  think, tell me if this is a fair kind of summary of

          7  the cost issue.  In terms of the cost of remedying

          8  the toxins and, I guess, reducing the amount of

          9  toxins in the water and the fish, that is something

         10  that we are spending, literally, billions of dollars

         11  on each year, if I understand it between the State

         12  and the City governments, I guess, federal

         13  government, as well, in terms of water, you know,

         14  sewage control, water, pollution treatment in terms

         15  of the dredging of the Hudson to remove the dioxins.

         16    I mean, and all the controls on private industry

         17  imposed by the Clean Water Act, this is a multi

         18  billion dollar commitment to clean up the Hudson and

         19  the East Rivers and New York Harbor.

         20                 But with even before that great day

         21  when the waters are returned to their 1600

         22  condition, we can remedy the health risk by

         23  educating people a little bit about the dangers of

         24  the fish. And again, it's not a question that if you

         25  eat one fish, you are going to keel over, right?
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          2  The health risks are if you eat more than a half of

          3  a pound a week for an adult, and for a child, if you

          4  eat any at all.  So basically, the message is do not

          5  feed the fish to your kids, and if you want to go

          6  fish and catch something and eat it, you can go

          7  ahead, do that once in while.  But that should not

          8  be part of your regular diet, because if it is, you

          9  may be doing yourself some very serious long- term

         10  damage.  Is that fair to say?

         11                 MS. PFLUGH:  Fairly.  In New Jersey,

         12  however, in the area where my work is taking place,

         13  the risks are quite a bit more than that.  And in

         14  fact the risk assessment that we did recently

         15  indicated that the risk falls between 5 Xs cancers

         16  per 1,000 persons exposed to essentially 100 percent

         17  risk of cancer, if consuming crabs at a rate of

         18  about 15 crabs per meal, per day over a lifetime of

         19  exposure.  So it is quite high, it's the highest

         20  risk assessment that our Department has ever

         21  calculated.  And this is based on levels of dioxin,

         22  and exposure information that we have collected from

         23  crabbers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I'm sorry, did

         25  you say 15 crabs per day?
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          2                 MS. PFLUGH:  Per meal, yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.

          4                 MS. PFLUGH:  There are some people

          5  who eat that many, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And what about

          7  if you eat crabs once a week.

          8                 MS. PFLUGH:  We have a no harvest, no

          9  consumption ban in effect in the New York Bay

         10  complex in New Jersey.  So the taking and

         11  consumption of any crabs is something that we do not

         12  allow.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, - -

         14                 MS. PFLUGH:  Although it happens.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  So for crabs the

         16  risk is quite a bit more severe  - -

         17                 MS. PFLUGH:  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: - -  than it is

         19  for the fish.

         20                 MS. PFLUGH:  Yes, that is correct.

         21  That we know of.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I guess because

         23  they live on the bottom is the idea.

         24                 MS. PFLUGH:  It is because they are a

         25  bottom dweller and a bottom feeder, and the
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          2  contamination occurs primarily in the sediments.

          3  And because of the high lipid content of the

          4  hepatopancreas, which is like a liver, it stores

          5  there.  And when you prepare crabs, you will be

          6  eating, these levels will become magnified in your

          7  body.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, okay, I

          9  think this, I will return to, but I think this

         10  really does speak to the need for education.

         11  Because I think, just in talking to people who do go

         12  out and use the water recreationally, I do not think

         13  that people appreciate the significant difference in

         14  the risk in different species, they think it is all

         15  the same.

         16                 MS. PFLUGH:  That is absolutely - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I'm sorry,

         18  Council Member Addabbo.

         19                 MS. PFLUGH:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council Member

         21  Sanders.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.  I am very glad to be here, especially at

         24  this.  I also want to thank our panelists for coming

         25  in from across the water, bringing such good
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          2  information.

          3                 In one sense we are a victim of our

          4  own success, the Federal Clean Water Act has done

          5  some magnificent jobs, and has brought more people

          6  back into fishing.  There was a time when everyone

          7  knew that if you went to the waters, you were on

          8  your own. Now the news reports are saying the waters

          9  are much cleaner, everything is much better, so

         10  people are, have lowered their guards.

         11                 The sad thing is that the poisons,

         12  which we have dumped into our water stream are still

         13  there, and not to mention what we haven't cleaned up

         14  already or cleaning up currently.  So that they're

         15  still there and you are right, the bottom dwellers

         16  more than any others are collecting it and almost

         17  acting as if a magnet, and we are eating this stuff

         18  and it's really having an incredible impact.

         19                 I know that in New York City there

         20  was an outreach program to directly reach people

         21  fishing on the edges of the water, and to directly

         22  reach the crabbers, themselves.  As a person who

         23  lives in Rockaways and has grown up eating from the

         24  Jamaica Bay, I trust that these lights go out, you

         25  will not see me glow or anything like that.  Look,
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          2  it's done well for me, I'm still here. So as a

          3  person who has come up with this as part of the

          4  environment, part of the culture of the Rockaways,

          5  it's a big thing to change.  I may recommend that

          6  you have people going up to the fishermen and the

          7  crabbers, individually.

          8                 I know that working with the

          9  community- based organizations over here has been

         10  useful, especially reaching the immigrant

         11  communities, which have it more as a culture also,

         12  and people of color.  I trust that you are doing

         13  similar in Jersey.

         14                 MS. PFLUGH:  Yes, that is, in fact,

         15  the plan.  The idea of working with the local

         16  organizations and establishing a liaison in the

         17  communities is for that very purpose.

         18                 We are also going to be employing a

         19  group of AmeriCorps members, our New Jersey

         20  Watershed Ambassadors to take time and go out to the

         21  different fishing and crabbing locations and hand

         22  out flyers and talk to the people.

         23                 So the research that we have done

         24  previously has indicated that really the most

         25  effective way to reach people who are engaging in
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          2  this activity is to go to the fishing and crabbing

          3  locations to speak with them.  Because anglers,

          4  fishermen, fisherwomen, get their information about

          5  fishing from other fishermen.  And so, you know,

          6  it's not the newspaper necessarily, it's not the bus

          7  placard necessarily.  Although, I think those are

          8  important to include in any outreach campaign, the

          9  people we need to reach are really at the shoreline,

         10  and we need to go to the shoreline and speak with

         11  them.

         12                 But I just wanted to point out

         13  something that you had said, which seems, it is so

         14  very true and it's a fine line we need to walk in

         15  terms of denying people the right to fish versus

         16  protecting their health.  We want to encourage

         17  people to us the waterways and to engage in

         18  activities, you know, with that resource, because

         19  ultimately we believe that if you feel connected to

         20  the water, you will do something to improve the

         21  waterways.  And so, it's the fine line of protecting

         22  public health and encouraging use of a recreational

         23  resource.  And it's a complicated activity that we

         24  need to engage in, to make sure that we achieve both

         25  those goals.  People are still interested in their
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          2  water, and still interact with it.  And yet they,

          3  that they throw things back instead of take it home.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well put.

          5  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

          7  much.  My last question is, Ms. Pflugh, how much, I

          8  mean because so, I think, a disproportionately high

          9  percentage of the folks that we are concerned about

         10  here, the folks that are fishing and then eating the

         11  fish they catch are recent immigrants.  How high do

         12  you think would be the cultural barrier to affecting

         13  that behavior?  In other words, would, is, you know,

         14  how effective is outreach going to be in changing

         15  people's behavior?

         16                 MS. PFLUGH:  It is going to be an

         17  enormous challenge, absolutely.  Because cultural

         18  tradition is something that we have also identified

         19  as being one of the big barriers to our

         20  effectiveness in issuing our advisories and getting

         21  compliance with advisories.  You know people coming

         22  from other countries bring that tradition of fishing

         23  and eating recreationally caught fish with them, and

         24  so it is very hard.

         25                 We are going to be, hopefully, using

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON WATERFRONTS

          2  people from the various communities to help us with

          3  that effort.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I mean, just one

          5  I know who does routinely eat fish that is caught in

          6  Jamaica Bay is a Jamaican immigrant who does not eat

          7  pizza or hamburgers, they are too American.  And so,

          8  I mean, it seems to me that the barriers are going

          9  to be fairly high.

         10                 MS. PFLUGH:  We want to continue to

         11  encourage consumption of fish, but I think we want

         12  to make sure that people get their fish from a

         13  reputable market, rather than from contaminated

         14  areas.  And I think that any of your public health

         15  people will tell you that fish is an important part

         16  of a diet, and again, we need to be careful not to

         17  discourage that.  But we need to talk about where

         18  people can get safe fish, or fish that are safe to

         19  eat.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That is

         21  terrific.  Thank you. Oh, last question for the EPA

         22  representative, Mr. Nyman.  Are there any federal

         23  EPA or otherwise, grant programs that are

         24  financially strap city, like New York ought to know

         25  about as we contemplate an outreach program, are
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          2  there any grants, source of grants for outreach

          3  programs that we should be aware of?

          4                 MR. NYMAN:  I actually think that

          5  there was some outreach for some funding provided

          6  back in 1999 related to the Hudson River.  I can

          7  look into what additional programs there are.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

          9  much.  We will definitely follow- up with you about

         10  that, I'm sure.  Thank you very much to this entire

         11  panel.

         12                 MS. FLATOW:  May I say, - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, Ms. Flatow.

         14                 MS. FLATOW: - -  a thank you to you,

         15  Chairman, for what you and your Committee are doing.

         16    It's marvelous to find the waterfront suddenly

         17  being on the horizon, people's email, so that we

         18  know that we can do something about it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, on behalf

         20  of all of the Committee, I would say, I think we

         21  thank you for the work, we really are, I think,

         22  following up on the tremendous work that we are

         23  learning has been done out in the community, and so,

         24  thank you very much.

         25                 Thank you.  And our next group of
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          2  witnesses is Carter Craft representing the

          3  Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance; Dennis Suszkowski

          4  from the Hudson River Foundation; Anne Golden from

          5  Mount Sinai School of Medicine.  And I have a card

          6  here from Reed Super, but, oh, my goodness, I

          7  thought I did not see him, Mr. Super from

          8  Riverkeeper.

          9                 Okay, Mr. Suszkowski, why don't you

         10  begin?

         11                 MR. SUSZKOWSKI:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman, members of the Committee.  I am Dennis

         13  Suszkowski, the Science Director of the Hudson River

         14  Foundation for Science and Environmental Research

         15  based here in Manhattan.  I appreciate greatly your

         16  invitation to participate in this hearing, and your

         17  leadership on issues relating to the City's

         18  waterfront and its waters.

         19                 The Hudson River Foundation,

         20  established 20 years ago, is committed to making

         21  science integral to decision- making with regard to

         22  the Hudson River and its watershed and to supporting

         23  competent stewardship of this extraordinary

         24  resource.  We support scientific research,

         25  communication to expand knowledge about the river
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          2  among the scientific community, policy makers, and

          3  the public at large; initiatives to enhance the

          4  management of the Hudson ecosystem; and education

          5  about the River and physical improvements to the

          6  riverfront.

          7                 As part of that mission, we are

          8  actively involved in, and provide staff support to,

          9  the New York/New Jersey Harbor Estuary Program.  For

         10  that program the Foundation recently prepared a

         11  report on the environmental health of New York

         12  Harbor.  That report completed with partial funding

         13  from the USEPA, studied the tidal waters of New York

         14  Harbor and its tributaries.

         15                 The report, which I provided copies,

         16  called, Harbor Health/Human Health, focuses on

         17  harbor conditions as they relate to human health.

         18  It examines trends and environmental indicators by

         19  looking at them across time and across the harbor.

         20  Its analysis is the result of a compilation of data

         21  collected by federal, state, and local agencies, and

         22  the academic community.

         23                 The report shows that the

         24  environmental health of New York Harbor has improved

         25  by as much as tenfold in the past 30 years.  That
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          2  improvement has come largely because environmental

          3  regulation, beginning with the Clean Water Act, has

          4  turned off the spigot for many of the big industrial

          5  sources of pollution going into the harbor and

          6  required improvements in sewage treatment.  The

          7  challenge now is to deal with the legacy of

          8  pollution from those sources and to identify and

          9  control less obvious pollution sources that are much

         10  tougher to control.

         11                 Among the findings of the report is

         12  that fish contamination remains a significant threat

         13  to human health.  The mean observed concentrations

         14  of contaminants for almost all fish are within

         15  federal guidance for the commercial sale of fish.

         16  But the concentrations still justify advisories by

         17  New York and New Jersey on the amount of fish that

         18  can be consumed by recreational anglers.

         19                 And in addition, Mr. Chairman, as you

         20  have pointed out, both New York and New Jersey

         21  advise that women of childbearing age, infants and

         22  children under the age of 15, should not eat any of

         23  the species from any waters for which there are

         24  advisories.  And I agree with you that this fact

         25  should be better known and the Committee could play
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          2  a major role in helping to communicate that

          3  information more effectively.

          4                 Our report contains information on

          5  where to find the full health advisories in both

          6  states, but the advisories should be more broadly

          7  disseminated and special attention should be given

          8  to these warnings, particularly during the fishing

          9  season.

         10                 As part of the Foundation's work in

         11  the Harbor Estuary, I co- chair the management of a

         12  project known as CARP, it is the Contamination

         13  Assessment and Reduction Project, which is

         14  conducting an ongoing assessment of contamination in

         15  the harbor. By the way, that effort is costing more

         16  than $20 million, the answer to, I think, an earlier

         17  question.  This project will allow us through a

         18  series of elaborate models, to track contaminants as

         19  they first enter the estuary as they move within the

         20  system in conjunction with water and sediments, and

         21  as they are taken up by fish.  The models are

         22  important tools because they can be used to project

         23  future harbor conditions, with or without specific

         24  actions to reduce inputs of contaminants.

         25                 Once our preliminary assessment is
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          2  complete, in about 18 months, we will know the

          3  relative importance of different continuing sources

          4  of contamination to the harbor, from sewage

          5  treatment plants to combined sewer overflows, to the

          6  bottom sediments, themselves, that are now acting as

          7  sources of contaminants to other parts of the

          8  system.  If significant sources prove to be in the

          9  City of New York, we will need the help of the City,

         10  and of this Committee, in particular, to address

         11  those problems.  In that event, I hope I will have

         12  the opportunity to come back and talk with you again

         13  at that time.

         14                 I have brought with me, for the

         15  Committee, copies of our report.  The report is also

         16  located on our website at www.hudsonriver.org.  And

         17  I would be very pleased to answer any questions.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.  Mr.

         20  Craft.

         21                 MR. CRAFT:  Good morning, and thanks

         22  for the opportunity to testify.  I am not going to

         23  talk you through our packet, because it really

         24  includes a compendium of information from DEC and

         25  the Department of Health and City Parks that I think
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          2  a lot of our scientific experts are better equipped

          3  to integrate and address.  But I do just want to

          4  touch on four points in our packet.

          5                 We are not just solving a signage

          6  problem, we still got a water quality problem to

          7  solve.  We have a pollution problem to solve.  Two

          8  challenges to solving this pollution problem, as we

          9  see it, are:

         10                 1.  Brownfields and Superfund sites

         11  still pervade the waterfront.  We can clean up the

         12  water all we want, but we cannot clean up the water

         13  until we clean up the land.  So we really need the

         14  City's support and the State's support for

         15  Brownfields legislation, some demonstration

         16  projects, some creative approaches to remediating

         17  the land, which itself, is a source of pollution in

         18  the water.

         19                 2.  Street runoff is also an enormous

         20  threat to water quality in the City, in the State.

         21  A number of advocacy groups have said it is the

         22  largest threat to water quality in the United

         23  States.

         24                 And following in that, I think really

         25  there are two things we look to the Council to do:
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          2                 1.  Is to take a critical look at the

          3  plans of the City to construct giant containment

          4  tanks to capture the storm surge runoff.  The

          5  enormous expense in creating these facilities, you

          6  know, some are in the hundreds of millions of

          7  dollars.  You know, one in College Point is about

          8  $300 million more than the price of Brooklyn Bridge

          9  Park itself.  It suggests that we should really look

         10  for other options.  Building a giant containment

         11  tank to help capture street runoff is really the

         12  same as adding another lane to the BQE, or building

         13  another landfill to solve the solid waste problem.

         14  Creating a whole costly infrastructure is probably

         15  not the best answer.

         16                 This is not a shot at DEP, you know,

         17  to an agency that has probably the hardest job in

         18  the City next to PD and the Fire Department.  The

         19  reality is that when they do their job well, none of

         20  even know they are there.  The water comes out of

         21  the tap, the sewage goes away, we all enjoy our

         22  quality of life.  But solving this pollution problem

         23  really is going to require an integrated approach

         24  between Parks, DEP, DOT and Buildings.  We need to

         25  trace it all the way back to the impervious surfaces
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          2  that cover our City.

          3                 It's not just the runoff, itself, but

          4  it is the paved surfaces that create the runoff.

          5  And if we could put together some sort of task force

          6  of interdisciplinary agencies, Buildings, Parks,

          7  DEP, DOT, we could look at street trees, we could

          8  look at sort of urban greening programs, we could

          9  look at green roofs.  You know, we got the best way

         10  to deal with the runoff is to not to create so much

         11  of it to begin with.

         12                 And the last point, I think is right

         13  on target to what the Committee is discussing today,

         14  and it is to require public agencies who administer

         15  or manage waterfront property, yes, to put up those

         16  signs, because that is an immediate public health

         17  problem. And as we head into summer, we are just a

         18  few short days away from summer actually beginning,

         19  there are more and more people going out there.

         20  Just like the man on the front of the packet we

         21  submitted for, as part of our testimony who are

         22  putting it right in their mouths and having no idea

         23  what is it.

         24                 And just as an addendum to a comment

         25  that the Chair made earlier, I think the regulation
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          2  should also apply to private property- owners as

          3  well, because where property is rezoned for

          4  commercial or non- industrial use and waterfront

          5  access has to be created, if you just go to Cosco in

          6  Long Island City or some of these other waterfront

          7  locations that are technically privately owned, they

          8  are still required to provide public access, and

          9  they should be required to put up public signage, as

         10  well.

         11                 That is it.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         13  much.  I will just add, I do not know about the rest

         14  of the City, but it is certainly true in my

         15  district, at least, I do not know if it is half and

         16  half, or whatever it is, but a large percentage of

         17  the places where people just routinely go to fish,

         18  are privately owned. So that clearly is part of the

         19  problem.

         20                 Dr. Golden, it's a real honor to have

         21  you here today.  Your work on this has been, I

         22  think, path breaking and extremely useful to those

         23  of us in government who are looking at this.  So

         24  thank you very much for coming today.

         25                 DR. GOLDEN:  Thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to speak with you.  The study I'm

          3  presenting today is the Hudson River Anglers Health

          4  Study conducted at the Mount Sinai School of

          5  Medicine with support from grants from the Hudson

          6  River Foundation, as well as the National Institute

          7  of Environmental Health Science through our

          8  Superfund program.

          9                 We initiated this work, basically,

         10  because of the evidence that you cited that there is

         11  extensive contamination of the sediment, of the

         12  edible species, and we know that these contaminants

         13  increase as they move up the food chain.  They

         14  accumulate, they are lipophilic, and the highest

         15  levels are found in the top predator species, such

         16  as striped bass, blue fish, eels, as well as the

         17  predatory bottom feeders, as Kerry Kirk Pflugh

         18  mentioned.

         19                 Previous studies from other regions

         20  have demonstrated that children of women with the

         21  highest body burdens of PCBs and mercury have

         22  decrements in central, neurological function, delays

         23  in development that have been directly related to in

         24  utero exposure to these toxins.  These decrements

         25  appear to be irreparable, and they do persist as the
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          2  children mature.

          3                 Because of these concerns, the health

          4  advisories were put in place, and as you said, in

          5  general, women of childbearing age and children are

          6  told to abstain completely from eating fish and

          7  crustaceans from the Lower Hudson River and from the

          8  Harbor.

          9                 Nevertheless, two questionnaire

         10  surveys in the 1990s indicated that anglers and

         11  their families continue to consume locally caught

         12  fish regularly and in significant quantities.

         13  Consumption of local fish was most common among poor

         14  and immigrant communities, as you mentioned, whose

         15  diet traditionally is high in fish and who rely on

         16  local fish as an inexpensive source of protein.

         17                 No data, at that time, had been

         18  collected to document human exposures to these

         19  chemicals resulting from eating fish from these

         20  local waterways.  Therefore, we applied to the

         21  Hudson River Foundation for funding to conduct a

         22  pilot study in 1998 and 1999.  We measured and

         23  talked with 46 local anglers who fish and crab the

         24  sites on the Lower Mainstem Hudson and in the Harbor

         25  Complex.  We did a questionnaire and obtained a
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          2  blood and hair sample.

          3                 The anglers were recruited through

          4  the Hudson River Anglers Association up in Stony

          5  Point and the Hudson River Fishermen's Association

          6  in Ridgefield Park, New Jersey, and with the help of

          7  Kerry Kirk Pflugh, a community center in Elizabeth,

          8  New Jersey.  Most of the 46 participants were white

          9  males, with a mean age of 50 years, they ranged in

         10  age from 28 to 77, 91 percent were white males.

         11  Eighty- three percent reported that they did have

         12  some knowledge of the State advisories on locally

         13  caught fish, whether their information was

         14  completely accurate, some of it may have been

         15  anecdotal, but 83 percent knew that there was an

         16  advisory in place.

         17                 Despite that, most of the

         18  participants, 85 percent reported eating local fish

         19  at least once per month, and 48 percent ate it at

         20  least once per week.

         21                 The species most commonly consumed

         22  were some of those as mentioned in the advisories as

         23  the most at- risk, striped bass, as I had mentioned,

         24  by 84 percent; blue fish by 66 percent; blue crabs

         25  by 60 percent.
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          2                 Moving onto our results, we did

          3  observe positive correlations between self- reported

          4  frequency of fish consumption and serum levels of

          5  these persistent contaminants.  Compared to anglers

          6  who ate less than one meal per week, anglers who

          7  ate, at least, one meal per week had higher serum

          8  concentrations of total PCBs, the highly chlorinated

          9  PCBs, which are most persistent to the environment.

         10  Also we found similar patterns for the organic

         11  chlorine pesticide, chlordane and DDT, and

         12  particularly for mercury, a threefold increase in

         13  mercury in those who ate fish, at least, once a

         14  week.

         15                 Anglers in New Jersey actually had

         16  higher levels than the anglers we recruited up river

         17  in New York.  We did not recruit right on New York

         18  waterfronts on this side of the river. But among

         19  those Jersey anglers, a majority of them did go into

         20  the harbor region.  Years of fishing in the lower

         21  part of the Hudson River were most significantly

         22  correlated with concentrations of PCBs.  Years of

         23  fishing in the harbor were significantly correlated

         24  with chlordane levels, as we know from the fish and

         25  the crab data.
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          2                 No particular species of fish was

          3  found to be the predominant predictor of these

          4  levels.  Crabs, however, were highly correlated with

          5  some of the pesticide residues, chlordane and DDT.

          6                 To conclude, the principal finding of

          7  the pilot study is that body burdens of persistent

          8  pollutants were significantly greater in anglers who

          9  consumed locally caught fish and crabs, at least,

         10  once a week.  Data from the study also suggest that

         11  the advisories issued are not fully effective in

         12  influencing fish consumption behavior.

         13                 We are not sure why this is.  I

         14  commend your efforts to make these advisories more

         15  well known and clearer and offer alternatives, such

         16  at catch and release.  And also teaching people

         17  about alternative cooking methods.

         18                 In our new research that we are

         19  conducting, we are asking much more detail on the

         20  species that they catch, how they prepare the fish,

         21  whether they eat the skin, whether they eat the

         22  hepatopancreas, if they deep fry versus boiling,

         23  which reduces some of the lipid content.  So all

         24  those types of data, if we can get that information

         25  out, I really do think we could have some impact. We
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          2  cannot stop people from fishing, but we can make it

          3  a safer activity.

          4                 And again, reaching out to the groups

          5  that we know are missing the advisory information,

          6  people of color, recent immigrants, non- English

          7  speaking people.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         10  much Doctor. And it is my special pleasure to

         11  introduce Reed Super, is an old friend, one of those

         12  City's leading environmental lawyers.  It is a real

         13  pleasure to have you here today, Mr. Super.

         14                 MR. SUPER:  Thank you very much,

         15  Chairman.  Thank you for this opportunity.  My name

         16  is Reed Super, and I am  a Senior Attorney with

         17  Riverkeeper, which is a 36- year- old non- profit

         18  organization dedicated to protecting the ecological

         19  integrity of the Hudson River.  We are also

         20  affiliated with two of our sister organizations, New

         21  York/New Jersey Baykeeper and Long Island Sound

         22  Keeper, which are founded along the same principles

         23  but based on those waterways.

         24                 Our long- term goal, of course, is to

         25  look forward to the day and work towards the day
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          2  where every New Yorker can cast a line in local

          3  waters and safely eat their catch.  Until that day

          4  comes, we must warn about the specific dangers that

          5  have been discussed this morning.  We got involved

          6  in this issue over a year ago when the City opened

          7  Phase I of Riverside Park South and opened Pier I in

          8  that park.  A fish scaling table was included as

          9  part of the Park design, and presently sits there.

         10  In addition, a sign at the entrance, both entrances

         11  to the Park, says, "Clean fish only in appropriate

         12  areas," and there was no warning sign when that Park

         13  was opened.  Not only in that case was there no

         14  warning, but the City was tacitly, perhaps even

         15  actively, encouraging people to eat the fish that

         16  they catch there.

         17                 We brought that to the attention of,

         18  then Commissioner Henry Stern of the Parks

         19  Department, and to the Parks Department credit, they

         20  posted a sign at Riverside Park South.  I have

         21  passed up to the Committee, unfortunately, only one

         22  copy, but a photograph of that sign.  Perhaps

         23  because of budgetary constraints, the sign is

         24  simply, I think, a printout of an 8 and 1/2 by 11

         25  sheet of paper in plastic, in only one language, not
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          2  very permanent, not very visible.  We can do a lot

          3  better, if the budget and the dedication is there to

          4  make appropriate warnings.  We pointed out, at that

          5  time, that the impacts do fall disproportionately on

          6  lower income communities, and that the sign should

          7  be placed in a number of languages.

          8                 So we fully support the goal

          9  expressed by the Chair of both outreach and a

         10  signage program to warn fishers of the dangers.  We

         11  need more signs in more locations, more permanent,

         12  in more languages.  And we offer our support,

         13  anything we can do to work with the Committee to

         14  help that come to fruition.

         15                 I want to point out a couple of

         16  things following up on what some other speakers have

         17  said.

         18                 One is that we do not want to

         19  discourage people from using the waterfront.  It is

         20  a complicated issue where we want to give

         21  appropriate information, but allow them to make the

         22  choice. We want people to continue fishing, we want

         23  people to catch and release rather than eat the

         24  fish.

         25                 Also, it is a very complicated
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          2  warning, if you look at the State Health Advisory,

          3  it's two sides of a legal page, it's complex,

          4  especially when you get into proper preparation of

          5  fish and the different species.  So it is a

          6  difficult task to determine what the proper amount

          7  of information to place on a sign is, and various

          8  agencies have taken various approaches, to date.

          9                 So we would like to work closely with

         10  the Committee, if that is permitted, to work on the

         11  proper content of the signage. We would also like to

         12  work with the Committee towards the ultimate goal of

         13  cleaning the local waterways, so that we can get to

         14  that day sooner, when it is safe to eat the fish.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

         17  much.  Council Member Sanders, I know you have a

         18  question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:   Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair.  I'm glad to see that the Hudson River

         21  Foundation is taking a real positive stand on this.

         22  The genesis of the Hudson River Foundation, perhaps,

         23  was sad, but the good work that they are doing now

         24  in making sure that monies are available and being

         25  put to clean up and to research is really important.
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          2    Because we may find out that we need to find some

          3  new process.  That just telling people that they

          4  need, we need to eat less fish, is simply not

          5  enough.  We need some new way of getting the toxins

          6  out of the water and out of the soil, and doing it

          7  in a way that does not release these toxins even

          8  further out.  And until we really find that out, we

          9  are going to be in a bind.

         10                 I agree with my friend from the

         11  Waterfront Alliance that part of the problem is the

         12  surfaces of New York in the Brownfields.  New York

         13  City, in the midst of all of these problems that we

         14  have, has to commit itself to doing something about

         15  the Brownfields.  We have been waiting for a State,

         16  for some State money, some State legislation for a

         17  long time, and it's not just on the horizon, real

         18  money is not on the horizon.  And I believe that New

         19  York City has an obligation that we need to move in

         20  this direction, and I would be anxious to work with

         21  you to figure out what legislation would look like,

         22  especially around the issue of cleaning up

         23  Brownfields.  The surfaces in releasing toxins, if

         24  you wish, on the surfaces of New York City streets

         25  and other places, that is, I mean, I am anxious if
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          2  any of you have any solution for this one, besides

          3  banning all cars and things of this nature, I'm sure

          4  that will go over very well in New York City, yes,

          5  that will go over very, very well in New York City.

          6                 So the other things I'm anxious to

          7  work at things that perhaps we can do fairly quickly

          8  or at least move in that direction.  And I'm still

          9  looking, as always, I look forward to hearing from

         10  you the ideas and the directions.  And I compliment

         11  everybody for putting a lot of time and talent into

         12  this.  It is making our region a better place.  We

         13  have a long way to go, but remember where we have

         14  come from, we come from a long, long way.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council Member

         17  Addabbo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair. Again, I want to thank this panel for

         20  their time and testimony today.

         21                 As Chair of the Parks and Recreation

         22  Committee for the City Council, the fact that, I

         23  think, a large part of the role we play here,

         24  especially for this particular issue, is education,

         25  is getting the word out, getting information out,
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          2  warning people of such danger.  If there is anything

          3  that my Committee, the Parks and Recreation

          4  Committee can help with the additional signage, I

          5  think that would be, again, I would be willing to

          6  help and willing to work with this Committee, the

          7  Waterfront Committee in doing that.

          8                 I do believe that half of the battle

          9  is won, when we do make aware of the dangers that

         10  exist out, in our waterfronts with the contamination

         11  what procedures need to be done.

         12                 So if there is anything that my

         13  Committee could do in working with this Committee, I

         14  would be more than happy to do that.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Mr. Chair,

         17  even as you scurry back, I request permission to

         18  take my leave from you to go to another meeting?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  No permission

         20  needed, it's just I'm disappointed not to be in your

         21  presence for even more, even a longer period of

         22  time.  But I appreciate your coming today in the

         23  midst of all we have got to do, as I know you folks

         24  know, every day, supposedly, we are in the final

         25  stages of negotiating this budget, and it's, I have
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          2  got to be here as Chair, but the, my colleagues

          3  being here with so much else going on, there are

          4  showing quite a bit of commitment.

          5                 I just had a couple of questions for

          6  you, and I wrote them down.  I'm sorry, oh, here we

          7  go.  Dr. Golden, how, can you kind of quantify the

          8  risk of eating fish from New York Harbor? And

          9  granted that there is crabs and there is striped

         10  bass and then there are probably fish that are

         11  perfectly safe to eat.  But somebody who eats fish

         12  once a week, that they go out and catch in Jamaica

         13  Bay or in the East River from off a bulkhead, is

         14  that person twice as likely to get cancer, you know,

         15  150 percent, you know, one and a half times more

         16  likely, four times, or what can you say about that?

         17                 DR. GOLDEN:  The cancer risk is

         18  probably the hardest to quantify and get a good

         19  estimate on it.  The risk estimates for the Hudson

         20  River, PCB hotbeds, I believe, were an additional

         21  cancer per 100,000, I believe that was the estimate

         22  based on the recent EPA assessment.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Although, with

         24  the baseline would there be 5 out of 100,000 or

         25  something, in other words, -            DR. GOLDEN:
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          2  Yes, the cancer one is very difficult.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  No, but I mean

          4  I'm saying, are you, what is the control?

          5                 DR. GOLDEN:  Oh, what is the base?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  So is one per

          7  100,000, a 20 percent increase or it is a who knows?

          8                 DR. GOLDEN:  Probably several hundred

          9  percent increase for liver cancers and other rare

         10  tumors.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Oh, okay.  Well

         12  that is quite significant.

         13                 DR. GOLDEN:  Some of the EPA people

         14  may be able to address that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That is a

         16  frightening statement.

         17                 DR. GOLDEN:  Yes, the critical health

         18  issue, we believe the most critical health issue is

         19  the neurodevelopmental toxicity related to in utero

         20  draw exposure.  Our critical, most vulnerable

         21  population is women of childbearing age who may

         22  become pregnant who build up significant stores in

         23  their body and then these are readily cross the

         24  placenta and readily are excreted in breast milk.

         25  So for neurological outcomes, we have seen levels
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          2  at, excuse me, decrements at the same levels we are

          3  seeing in our angler is three parts per billion.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And pardon me

          5  for my ignorance, because you are using the word

          6   "decrements," not a word I'm familiar with.

          7                 DR. GOLDEN:  IQ.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  What I take - -

          9  okay.

         10                 DR. GOLDEN:  It decreases an IQ,

         11  decreases on standard neurological developmental

         12  tests.  My colleague, Dr. Landegan (phonetic), the

         13  pediatrician could give you a much better in depth

         14  answer.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  You are

         16  saying that women eating fish from the harbor that

         17  their children - -

         18                 DR. GOLDEN:  Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: - -  are likely

         20  to have impaired brain functioning, if I understand

         21  what you are saying.

         22                 DR. GOLDEN:  Correct, that is the

         23  principal finding.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Then these are,

         25  this is, that is a consequence that we, as a City,
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          2  are going to be dealing with and paying for in terms

          3  of Special Education teachers, in terms of people

          4  who will be less productive members of the economy,

          5  perhaps, for years.

          6                 You are saying that the risk we are

          7  talking about here is one that will persist for a

          8  long time.  The consequence will persist for a long

          9  time and be very, very costly.

         10                 DR. GOLDEN:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  My last question

         12  for you is, the study you did looked, if I now

         13  understand it, primarily at folks who live in New

         14  Jersey fishing in the Hudson?

         15                 DR. GOLDEN:  About half of them were

         16  New Jersey residents.  The New York residents tended

         17  to fish on the upper part of the Hudson.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Is there any

         19  reason to think that the effects would be, in terms

         20  of build up of the toxins in the body, would be any

         21  different for New York City residents?

         22                 DR. GOLDEN:  Probably not.  We

         23  luckily have received funding to continue the work

         24  in a more geographic representative area, more

         25  representative, so - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Did you say you

          3  have received?

          4                 DR. GOLDEN:  Yes, through our

          5  Superfund renewal, we are continuing this work.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Terrific.

          7                 DR. GOLDEN:  It's a four- year

          8  project, and we will try and get more representative

          9  populations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  All right, that

         11  is great.  I look forward to that.  Okay, thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 And, Reed, your point about the, that

         14  anecdote about the signs was, I think, extremely

         15  illustrative.  Are there signs, as far as you know,

         16  at other places along the Harbor where people fish?

         17                 MR. SUPER:  There aren't that I know

         18  of, and I was told, although, I have not verified,

         19  that there is another fish scaling table in Queens

         20  West, which had the same designer as Riverside Park

         21  South.  And I am not aware of, well, the only sign

         22  that I am aware of at Pier 40 on the Hudson River,

         23  there is actually a New York City Angling Program, I

         24  do not know the exact title of it and whether it's

         25  private or receives some City sponsorship.  I have
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          2  seen a sign in conjunction with that angling

          3  instruction program.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  Well, I,

          5  you know, and I take your point, and also, Mr.

          6  Craft's point, the goal certainly is not to

          7  discourage use of the water, the goal is to

          8  encourage use of the water to make people as

          9  comfortable as possible.  And I think that we can do

         10  that consistently with also making sure that people

         11  are safe or at least helping people to act safely as

         12  best we can.

         13                 Thank you very much.  This was a

         14  terrific panel, I really appreciate your coming.

         15                 Our next and last panel is Nancy Kim

         16  from the New York State Department of Health, Nancy

         17  Jeffery from the New York City Department of Health,

         18  Kelly McKinney, also from New York City Department

         19  of Health, and Michael Surgan representing State

         20  Attorney General Elliot Spitzer.

         21                 Let me say again for the City

         22  Department of Health people, in particular, I don't

         23  know if you were here at the outset, when I said

         24  this, but Chairman Quinn, Christine Quinn, who is,

         25  as you know, Chairman of the Health Committee had
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          2  intended to be here today, in fact, was here right

          3  at the outset and had a nameplate, but then had a

          4  budget- related scheduling thing that came up that

          5  she had to go to.  But she sends here regards.

          6                 Why don't we start with Ms. Kim from

          7  the New York State Department of Health.

          8                 MS. KIM:  My Division in the New York

          9  State Department is responsible for developing the

         10  fish advisories.  As you probably have already

         11  heard, the decision to eat sportfish, in other

         12  words, fish taken by non- commercial recreational

         13  anglers is not regulated by government.  Instead

         14  advisories are issued to help individuals make

         15  decisions about eating sportfish.  In New York

         16  State, the State Health Department issues those

         17  advisories.

         18                 The primary goal of our advisories is

         19  to advise people how they can minimize their

         20  exposure to contaminants in Sportfish and reduce

         21  whatever health risks are associated with them.  At

         22  the same time, our goal is to continue to have

         23  people obtain the nutritional benefits from eating

         24  fish.  This is a difficult goal to accomplish

         25  because of the perceived mixed message, in other
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          2  words, some fish should not be eaten because they

          3  contain elevated levels of contaminants.  Yet, fish

          4  are good for you.  We recognize the need to use

          5  effective risk communication processes, including he

          6  need for consistent advisory for water bodies shared

          7  by more than one state, the need to simplify the

          8  advisories when possible and the need to provide

          9  advice to groups with different cultures and health

         10  status.

         11                 In New York State we first issued our

         12  first fish advisory in the early 1970s.  Our

         13  advisors are set by considering marketplace

         14  standards, health risks, and risk communication

         15  needs.

         16                 We have two types of sportfish

         17  advisories:  One that we call our general advisory

         18  on sportfish taken from waters in New York State;

         19  the other is advice on sportfish from specific water

         20  bodies based on contaminant levels in fish taken

         21  from that water body.  The general advice provides

         22  simple guidelines that people can follow to minimize

         23  their exposure, while advisories for specific water

         24  bodies are issued to help people avoid specific

         25  species or water bodies with contaminated fish.
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          2                 Part of our general advisory

          3  recommends to eat no more than one meal, one- half

          4  pound, per week of fish taken from the State's fresh

          5  water bodies and some marine waters at the mouth of

          6  the Hudson River.  The general advisory is to

          7  protect against eating large amounts of fish that

          8  have not been tested or may contain unidentified

          9  contaminants.  We also issue general advice about

         10  choosing smaller fish within a species, advice on

         11  how to prepare sportfish in terms of filleting to

         12  reduce the contaminants. We have specific advice not

         13  to eat the soft green tissue, which is the mustard,

         14  tomalley, or hepatopancreas found in the body

         15  section of crab or lobster.  And we also provide

         16  recommendations about cooking methods.

         17                 We have issued advisories for fish

         18  from 70 specific water bodies.  In those situations

         19  we recommend that infants, children under the age of

         20  15 and women of childbearing age not eat any fish

         21  from those specific water bodies.

         22                 I would like to talk a little bit

         23  about an outreach effort we have had going on in the

         24  New York City area for a while. With the support of

         25  the USEPA funds we had a special initiative that was
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          2  undertaken in the Harbor area in the spring and

          3  summers of 1999 and 2000.

          4                 The approach was to identify several

          5  high risk communities.  We worked with local

          6  community leaders, including the New York City

          7  Department of Health, Environmental Justice groups,

          8  grassroots organizations and others, to identify

          9  important fishing locations throughout the New York

         10  Harbor area and the populations that may be catching

         11  and eating PCB contaminated fish.  Several

         12  communities were identified, including the Lower

         13  East Side, Hunts Point, Long Island City and the

         14  Greenpoint/Williamsburg area.  In these areas we

         15  found a wide range of ethnic groups that fish,

         16  African- American, Caucasian, Chinese, Dominican,

         17  Latino and Puerto Rican.

         18                 Among these groups there was varied

         19  awareness about the advisories, but in no case, had

         20  ore than half the people heard about fish

         21  advisories.  The need for increased outreach was

         22  clearly understood.

         23                 In that same time period, we

         24  developed a number of promotional materials to raise

         25  awareness of the Hudson River Fish Advisories.  Much
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          2  of it was distributed in New York City to children's

          3  programs, bait and tackle shops, food pantries,

          4  health care practitioners, community centers, and

          5  environmental organizations.  We continued to try to

          6  reach out to those same groups.

          7                 In addition, we had two public

          8  service announcements were recorded, 30- and 60-

          9  second announcement in both English and Spanish.

         10  And we received quite a bit of play on both

         11  purchased and free time.

         12                 We continued to work with the New

         13  York City Health Department and community- based

         14  organizations that wished to outreach an education

         15  on fish advisories.  Developing and sustaining

         16  partnerships with community- based groups is the

         17  best way to ensure that methods and materials are

         18  appropriate, and more important, it taps into the

         19  credibility and respect of local leaders and

         20  organizations who know their constituency and

         21  maintain mechanisms for reaching them.

         22                 There are several other materials

         23  that I have not brought with me, that if the Council

         24  is interested in retaining them, we will be glad to

         25  provide them.  Some of those are Angler Surveys.  We
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          2  also did an Angler Survey, I think it was about the

          3  mid- 1990s that we can provide to you for the Hudson

          4  River.  We also had a focus group, when we were

          5  developing signs for the Upper Hudson, to try and

          6  explore what kinds of signs really worked best,

          7  because it is a very difficult message that we are

          8  trying to get across.  And we have the result, a

          9  write up of the result of those focus groups, but

         10  again, that was for the Upper Hudson rather than the

         11  Lower Hudson.

         12                 So that concludes my testimony.  We

         13  appreciate the opportunity to be here today.  I

         14  would be glad to answer any questions you may have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well thank you

         16  very much.  And before we hear from the City

         17  Department of Health, my Counsel, whose manners are

         18  regrettably are far better than mine, it's not

         19  regrettable, but he has good manners, whereby that I

         20  don't, points out that, I know all of you were here

         21  since ten o'clock this morning.  I apologize for the

         22  delay.  I know being a government employee, myself,

         23  how much work you have got to do, and I really

         24  appreciate your being here, and bearing with us.

         25                 There are two folks from the City
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          2  Department of Health, is one testifying or both are

          3  testifying?

          4                 MS. JEFFERY:  Hi, my name is Nancy

          5  Jeffery.  I am the Director of the Environmental and

          6  Occupational Epidemiology Unit at the New York City

          7  Department of Health.  Essentially, what I wanted to

          8  say is that we have, as Nancy Kim has expressed,

          9  back in 1999 when they had received some funding, we

         10  did work with the State Department of Health in

         11  reviewing some of the materials and in trying to

         12  assist them in linking up local community groups

         13  which may have interest in subsistence fishing

         14  concerns.

         15                 And I think this is something we

         16  continue to work closely with our colleagues at the

         17  State Health Department on.  We would be happy to

         18  assist them, it's a yearly, or every other year

         19  advisories are issued, and our efforts would be in

         20  assisting them in getting some of the information to

         21  the appropriate places.

         22                 We do have public health clinics

         23  where people are treated for various health

         24  concerns, as you know, and we would be happy to make

         25  sure materials are placed in available health
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          2  clinics.  And again, to work with them to help

          3  identify local environmental groups.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, thank you.

          5    We can follow- up about that in just a minute.

          6                 MS. JEFFERY:  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Why don't we

          8  hear, is it Surgan or Surgan?

          9                 MR. SURGAN:  Surgan.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Surgan.  All

         11  right, Mr. Surgan, you are here representing

         12  Attorney General Spitzer.  And I do not want to

         13  steal thunder from your testimony.  I'm guessing,

         14  that you are going to tell us about this pamphlet

         15  that the Attorney General's Office prepared.  And I

         16  just want to commend you, even before we hear your

         17  testimony, and commend that Attorney General

         18  Spitzer, who on his own initiative, your office

         19  prepared this as an outreach tool, and has been very

         20  active in seeing it distributed. I think that is

         21  absolutely tremendous, you know, public service

         22  work.  And I commend you for it.

         23                 But thank you for coming here today

         24  to testify and I look forward to hearing your

         25  testimony.
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          2                 MR. SURGAN:  Thank you very much, Mr.

          3  Yassky.  As you have already heard, fish from the

          4  waters in and around New York City are so

          5  contaminated that the New York State Department of

          6  Health has issued advisories about the consumption.

          7  All who consume these fish may be at risk of health

          8  affects, including the anglers who catch them, as

          9  well as family, friends with whom they may share

         10  their catch, and even total strangers to whom they

         11  may sell their catch.  The question before us today,

         12  is how to best inform the public and educate them

         13  about these advisories.

         14                 In our outreach effort we decided to

         15  target those who are actively involved in family

         16  health care and meal preparation.  In the spring of

         17  2001 staff and the Attorney General's Environmental

         18  Protection Bureau prepared a public information

         19  brochure, which you have in front of you, called,

         20   "Should You Eat Fish Caught in the Waters Around

         21  New York City?" And it was available and is

         22  available in both Spanish and English. To reach the

         23  ultimate consumers, the ultimate fish consumers, the

         24  family and friends of anglers, we sent sample

         25  brochures in post paid request forms to food
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          2  pantries, soup kitchens, community service

          3  organizations, public health care and prenatal care

          4  clinics around the City.  The result was tremendous,

          5  to date, we have shipped more than 40,000 copies of

          6  the English version, and more than 20,000 copies of

          7  the Spanish version, all in response to specific

          8  requests.

          9                 In addition to request for brochures,

         10  we have received requests for translations to other

         11  languages.  This year when the brochures are revised

         12  to reflect slightly more restrictive advisories, it

         13  will be available not only in English and Spanish,

         14  but also in Russian, Chinese, and Creole.  We will

         15  once again offer the brochure to our institutional

         16  contact list now in all five languages.

         17                 Much can still be done to inform and

         18  protect the residents of New York City from the

         19  consequence of eating contaminated fish from local

         20  waters.  The City through its various agencies has

         21  many opportunities to contribute to this effort.  We

         22  have been discussing today the virtues of posting

         23  signs at popular fishing spots, and that is

         24  certainly something that should be done. But other

         25  efforts are needed to reach consumers who do not
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          2  actually catch the fish, and who may not frequent

          3  the waterfront.  Outreach efforts to inform the

          4  general public might include:  Notices posted in

          5  City buses and subways, notices posted in

          6  informational brochures distributed in health

          7  clinics, such as the Field Offices of the New York

          8  City Department of Health's Community Education

          9  Services Unit, Welfare Offices, public housing

         10  developments, and other points of contact between

         11  City government and those likely to consume locally

         12  caught fish.  We have already heard the idea of

         13  using public service announcements, and I would

         14  recommend that, especially in those radio stations

         15  that serve the minority, ethnic communities.  The

         16  Attorney General, of course, would be happy to work

         17  with the City on those efforts.

         18                 Finally, although we have not

         19  attempted to calculate the dollar cost of our

         20  efforts, we can ensure you that the cost of our

         21  outreach efforts has been modest.  The basic data,

         22  the advisories are freely available.  Drafting,

         23  layout, translation and printing were all done

         24  primarily with in- house resources.  Mailing costs

         25  were small since we sent batches of brochures to
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          2  organizations that in turn distributed them to

          3  individuals.  The cost of protecting the public

          4  health in this instance, need not be high, while the

          5  benefits to families in society may be substantial.

          6                 Thank you.  I would be happy to take

          7  any questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you very

          9  much.  A couple of questions.  For Ms. Kim, the

         10  public service announcements that you talk about in

         11  your testimony?

         12                 MS. KIM:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Those were TV or

         14  radio?

         15                 MS. KIM:  Radio.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And were they in

         17  stations that reached New York City or as well as

         18  other parts of the State?

         19                 MS. KIM:  They were focused in the

         20  Hudson River and in New York City, in the area of

         21  the Hudson River and New York City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And were they,

         23  you ran them in Spanish language, as well as in

         24  English?

         25                 MS. KIM:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And that was in

          3  1999/2000 did you say?

          4                 MS. KIM:  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Were you able to

          6  see or, I don't know, I gather there is no, you

          7  won't have a research answer to this, but

          8  anecdotally, did you have a sense of the

          9  effectiveness of those PSAs?

         10                 MS. KIM:  There are two ways to

         11  measure effectiveness.  One is, there is probably

         12  more than two, but there is two different ways.  We

         13  did notice that when we had the announcement played

         14  that we got more calls asking us for information,

         15  both in terms of Spanish speaking and in terms of

         16  just general information.  So in terms of, we did

         17  reach people that were getting the message in other

         18  ways.

         19                 In terms of whether or not they

         20  changed their behavior, we have not researched that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Did you, well,

         22  let me ask this of Ms. Jeffery, I guess.  The

         23  proposal that some people have talked about and that

         24  I outlined in my opening statement of putting signs

         25  at places where people fish from, has the Department
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          2  of Health, does the Department of Health have an

          3  opinion on the effectiveness of doing that?

          4                 And I will just say, I mean, again,

          5  anecdotally, it's not anecdotally, but from my own

          6  observation, there are many places on the City

          7  waterfront that I have been to, I see people fishing

          8  and they plan to eat the fish that they're catching.

          9    You know just casting a line from the bulkhead,

         10  and there is no signage.  Has the Department looked

         11  into that?

         12                 MS. JEFFERY:  I think the signage

         13  issue is something that is, I believe, handled by

         14  the New York State DEC and State DOH.  However, I

         15  think what has already been mentioned here also, is

         16  there is a difference between public piers or

         17  publicly, like governmental land where you could put

         18  signs up.  And the issue that I think people who

         19  really love to fish, will try to get access to the

         20  water, like you mentioned before on private land.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Absolutely, and

         22  I have no interest in establishing a fishing fleece

         23  to prevent that.  I mean, it's not that, even it

         24  were feasible that is certainly not the goal.  The

         25  goal is to inform people so that they understand the
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          2  risks that they are undertaking, and in some cases

          3  imposing on their children.

          4                 And yes, there is public and private,

          5  but I would say, just again, in my own little

          6  stretch, this little stretch of waterfront that I

          7  represent from, you know, Newtown Creek to Atlantic

          8  Avenue on the East River, there are, at least, half

          9  a dozen places, some privately owned, but some

         10  publicly owned, the end of Manhattan Avenue, which

         11  is public; the Empire State Park, which is State,

         12  where people do fish and there is no signage at

         13  those places.

         14                 Why shouldn't the City,  I mean, it

         15  seems to me the City ought to protect people, is

         16  there a reason not to?

         17                 MS. JEFFERY:  It's not that the City

         18  does not think that that is a good idea.  I think it

         19  is the jurisdiction, these are State waters, and the

         20  New York State DOH and DEC are the two agencies who,

         21  I believe, are the signage.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well you know

         23  what I guess I am going to ask, I would ask you to

         24  take a look at this issue and to let's, I would like

         25  to plan to talk about it in a couple of weeks.
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          2  Because the answer that they are State jurisdiction

          3  waters really is not, I think, an adequate answer.

          4                 If you are talking about City- owned

          5  property that people are congregating on to fish on.

          6    You know, I mean, that is really, I do not want to

          7  give people the kind of the idea that we are

          8  government at its worst, we are not, we are

          9  government at its best.  Government at its worst is,

         10  that is somebody else's problem. Government at its

         11  best is, our citizens need protection, we are in a

         12  position to help and we are going to do it.

         13                 So I would like to revisit that issue

         14  with in the next couple of weeks.

         15                 MR. MCKINNEY:  Mr. Chairman, if I

         16  may?  Kelly McKinney, Associate Commissioner of the

         17  Department of Health.  And you are absolutely right,

         18  and I want to join my predecessors in commending you

         19  for bringing a renewed sense of urgency to this

         20  issue.

         21                 The issue of fish consumption is also

         22  broader in a sense that, you know, there is the

         23  issue of wholesale, distribution sale of fish,

         24  retail sale of fish, sale prepared fish, and then

         25  this issue of sportfish.  So we are, the City
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          2  Department of Health and the other agencies along

          3  with us, over the years have divided the

          4  jurisdictions of these different issues up.  For

          5  instance, we inspect the City restaurants, 30,000

          6  restaurants in New York City and we conduct sanitary

          7  inspections for prepared fish.  State regulates

          8  wholesale, distribution sale of fish.

          9                 The issue of sportfishing, because

         10  they are State waterways, and because it is

         11  primarily a waterfront issue, it has been within

         12  State Department of Health and the City DEP.

         13                 Now we, you are absolutely right that

         14  when you see an issue of health concern, the City

         15  Department of Health should get involved, and we

         16  have worked with the State, and we will continue to

         17  do that.  And if you, and depending on the results

         18  of these discussions we can increase our efforts in

         19  this regard.  But if you look at the waterways, for

         20  instance, when you are talking about a State

         21  waterway and you are talking about the DEC and the

         22  Department of Health's, State Department of Health's

         23  history here, you know, the issue of how you

         24  communicate with those sportfishermen, I think, is

         25  the key issue.
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          2                 You know, technically speaking, what

          3  do the signs consist of, where should those signs be

          4  placed, how does that communication go, we can get

          5  involved with that.  But because it hasn't been

          6  traditionally within our mandate, I think that we do

          7  not bring the level of expertise that maybe some of

          8  these other agencies do.  And that is where you get

          9  into the whole jurisdictional issue.  We do not want

         10  to push this issue off and say it isn't important,

         11  and we can certainly increase our involvement.  But

         12  given the history and the mandate, I think that

         13  others have a better idea of how to communicate this

         14  issue to those fishermen.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, that is

         16  very helpful, and I do not underestimate for a

         17  minute the complexity of the task of trying to

         18  communicate in a way that will be effective and

         19  reach people, what is a fairly complicated, you

         20  know, set of advice, I suppose.  However, whether

         21  it's the jurisdiction of the Health Department or

         22  the Parks Department, because some of this property,

         23  I guess, some of the places I'm thinking of are in

         24  the jurisdiction of the Parks Department, or DCAS,

         25  or whoever it is, I guess, I think the

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON WATERFRONTS

          2  Administration, you know, as a whole is responsible

          3  for making sure that the people who are on City

          4  property fishing have the information that they

          5  need.  And I look forward to working with you and

          6  whoever it is that you will guide me to in pushing

          7  forward the City's response to this.

          8                 I don't want to go on forever there.

          9  Okay, well, thank you very much.  This panel has

         10  been very, very helpful, and I look forward to

         11  working with you over the next few weeks to see if

         12  we can get some, I mean at the very least, the

         13  private land as I recognize is more complicated.

         14  The outreach questions, I think are very difficult.

         15                 Let me ask this, just before you go,

         16  Mr. Surgan.  I know that you printed up this

         17  pamphlet, and who has been responsible for

         18  distributing it, the Attorney General's Office?

         19                 MR. SURGAN:  Yes, it's all been done

         20  by staff in the Attorney General's Environmental

         21  Protection Bureau.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And how many of

         23  them have you distributed?

         24                 MR. SURGAN:  At least 60,000 counting

         25  English and Spanish, so far, that is last year's
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          2  version, we are updating now.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That is

          4  terrific.  And what was the cost of that, just out

          5  of curiosity?

          6                 MR. SURGAN:  As I said, it was

          7  minimal.  The people who are here, the staff, two or

          8  three people in the office and mailing costs, the

          9  brochures, as you can see are modest, they are

         10  produced at our in- house Xerox facility.  So while

         11  we don't have a dollar, it is very inexpensive.

         12                 And I think that our last follow- up

         13  discussion now about signs, points out the

         14  difficulty with first placing the signs, and then

         15  dealing with what information to put up there, and

         16  what information the angler may carry home.

         17  Whereas, our approach, and I would commend it to

         18  your consideration, is to reach out to those who are

         19  involved in Family Health Care and Meal preparation

         20  and provide them with the information.  So even if

         21  fish does make it home, they will make the decision

         22   - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I doesn't make

         24  it to the table.

         25                 MR. SURGAN: - -  as to whether or not
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          2  it is going to be prepared.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well all right,

          4  thank you, again, for that.  And I look forward to

          5  continue to work with all of you on this.  Thank you

          6  very much, and thank you, my colleagues for your

          7  energy on this.

          8                 The hearing is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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